GRANADA: The Fall of Muslim Spain Q&A v1.5  5/17/03

LEADERS/ACTIVATION

Q: Does the rule "No leader may be activated more than once in a single campaign season" apply during Opponent Activates results? For example, if a Spanish leader is activated normally during the Spanish Action phase, can the same leader also be activated if the Moorish player rolls an "Opponent Activates" result during his/her phase?  

A: The limit applies also during opponent Activations. Like the rules state, once per season only. 

Q: How are leaders handled if the end up alone together in a space as a result of all their units being eliminated during combat?

A: They would all have to retreat to a friendly space.  If a leader was in a castle under siege, he could remain in the castle using the garrison as defense.  Any besieging leaders would have to retreat.  Lone leaders may move through spaces occupied by only lone enemy leaders.

Q: Is a Leader that performs a Reserve move assumed to have been activated for that season (since strictly speaking he was activated the previous season when he was placed in Reserve)? 

A: No. 

MOVEMENT

Q: Can one do a Reserve move into/through an area with an enemy castle but no enemy units or friendly units present? 

A: Yes, but may not conduct a siege. 

COMBAT/RETREAT

Q: Can a force besieged in a castle join battle when a relief force is activated and moves in to break the siege? 

A: No.  If you have enough activations, you could activate the units in the castle and move them out to join the battle since battles take place after all activation and movement.

Q: Can a force in a castle be subject to surprise attack? 

A: No

Q: Can the Moor player retreat after the 1st round of a successful surprise attack and thereby avoid any retaliation? 

A: No, he must undergo one round of enemy combat rolls.

Q: If a Moorish surprise attack fails, does Moorish infantry fire in the first round of combat? 

A: Yes

Q: Can a lone leader in a castle area that's invaded by enemy retreat into the castle (and use the garrison as defense)? 

A: Yes

Q: Can a lone leader defending with a castle garrison only apply his defense rating to the garrison value?

A: Yes

Q: How are overruns handled with a single leader in a space? For example, I have Ferdinand and two units moving into a space with a single Moorish Leader. If he successfully retreats (or captured, etc.) can my units keep moving as if it were an overrun? 

A: Yes 
Q: The rules for battle results says "For example, if a player has five units and suffers four hits, he may assign all four to one unit, one hit to each of four different units, or any combination." But it only takes two hits to kill a full-strength unit -- is it really allowed to assign four hits to it, thus throwing away two hits?  

A: The maximum is indeed 2 hits to one unit (no "throwing away hits" allowed). 

PORT/NAVAL

Q: Should Majacar be a port?

A: No

Q: The first two rules for Naval Movement say "Ships move from sea area to adjacent sea area, or to adjacent ports. Ships may only enter sea areas and blockade ports." The first sentence says that ships may enter ports; the second sentence implies they can't. Which is it?  

A: Ships may enter friendly-controlled ports (the port does not have ships or enemy ground units).

Q: Assuming that ships may enter ports, can they enter ports owned by the opponent, or ports with opposing fleets in them?

A: No.

Q: What happens if fleets are in a port and the opponent captures the port on land?  

A: Ships in a port captured by the enemy must immediately leave it (and fight blockaders if necessary). 

Q: If some ships in a sea area are "at sea", and others are blockading a port, how is this handled for interception and battle? 

A: Each group would be treated separately (ships at sea can't help their blockading comrades, and vice-versa). 

Q: The "Effects" section of the interception rules says, "At the conclusion of a naval battle, any moving ships which did not retreat may continue moving." But the sequence of play shows that naval combat is resolved at the end of the combat phase, after the action phase has ended. Are battles caused by interception supposed to be resolved immediately? 

A: Yes, resolve them immediately. 

Q: If a ship successfully gets through a blockade and there is another enemy ship/group in the sea zone it breaks into, does another battle ensue immediately with that ship/group, or does an intercept attempt have to occur? 

A: Another intercept attempt must occur.
Q: If I am moving my ship/group through an area with an enemy ship, can he attempt an intercept?

A: Yes

Q: If I am moving my ship/group through an area with an enemy and he doesn't want to intercept, can I attempt to intercept him, and if unsuccessful, keep moving? (I'm assuming that if I intercept successfully and have a battle, I have to stop my movement.)

A: No.  You must stop in the sea area to attempt an intercept.  If your intercept fails, you may not continue movement.  

Q: The rules for blockade say that after an attempt to break a blockade, "If the blockading ships are defeated, attacking ships cease moving and are placed in the sea area." Is this true even if the ships were attempting to enter the blockaded port -- even if they win the battle, they still have to stay at sea and can't enter the port? 

A: If attacking blockaders from the sea area, yes, the victors may then enter the port (if not enemy controlled).

Q: What are the rules for retreating from a naval battle? Can you retreat to a port? Can you retreat to adjacent sea area? Can you stay in the same area? Do enemy ships prevent retreats? 

A: Ships that lost an attempt to break out of a port return to that port. All others remain in the sea area where the battle took place; enemy ships do not prevent this. 

Q: Ports: What is considered "control" for purposes of a port and ships allowed in it? Here are a few examples: 

· Moorish troops in port, Spanish troops under siege "in" the castle. Spanish control.
· Spanish troops in port, castle (garrison) still under Moorish control or Moorish units in the castle under siege. Moorish control.

· Spanish control marker in port space (they took the castle) but no units of either side in the space. Spanish control. 

A: Basically, whoever controls the castle in the port space controls the port.  

CHARTS/TABLES

Q: How is the Campaign Season Chart used? I couldn't find any mention of it in the rules. 

A: Roll the die at the end of a campaign season. If the result is the number shown in the bottom of the box on the Campaign Track or greater, the campaign seasons for the year end and play moves on to the Winter Lull.

Q:  I was referring to the "Campaign Season Chart" on the chart sheet, which looks like it indicates where the season marker begins the year, based on Moorish castle points controlled. Since it doesn't seem to be mentioned in the rules, I wanted to make sure it is still supposed to be used, and confirm that it should be "Moorish Castle points controlled by the Spanish player side." 
A: “The campaign seasons begin "earlier" the better the Spanish are doing (so the Spanish build up momentum and get to do more stuff the more stuff they do), and can end "earlier" on a good/bad die roll. Note that players can also shift the season with a Major Victory in battle." 

There appears to be a missing rules paragraph or sentence that describes the Campaign Track, which I'm trying to get hold of and will post when I have it. Lost during layout but signed off on by at least four different people. 

Q: In Granada, what happens at the end of the 10th season if a 4 or greater isn't rolled? Does the marker get moved back to season 1, remain on the 10 spot, or just end the year anyway?

A: Just end the year anyway. 

SPECIAL RULES (Boabdil)

Q: The special rule for Boabdil talks about Boabdil "occupying" an area adjacent to another Moorish leader. To count as "occupying", does Boabdil have to end the turn in a space, or is passing through enough? If passing through is enough, does Boabdil have to roll for each such space he passes through in a turn, or only once a turn? 

A: End the turn in the space to cause an attack to occur. He may never enter a space with anyone but Ali al-Attar (nor may any other Moorish leader but Ali al-Attar enter a space containing Boabdil). 

Q: Does Boabdil really attack an adjacent Moorish leader starting in 1842, or does he have to be in the same space?

A: Yes, the same space first, and if none there then an adjacent space.

Q: What if Boabdil is alone in a space or is under the command of Ali al-Attar?

A: If he is alone, he moves toward friendly units.  If with Ali, he is no longer under his command and moves toward friendly units.

Q: Is he still required to attack an adjacent Moorish space with a Moorish leader/group? 

A:  Yes. You have to understand that he attempted to seize control of the government. In effect, he split Granada in two. This weakness led to a greater weakening of the Moorish state. It might seem cumbersome but then it was. Try the game without this rule and it gives Granada a much stronger position.

Q: What happens if Boabdil is adjacent to a Moorish Leader that has no troops?

A: If Boabdil has troops, he would attack.  If he doesn’t, he would have to move away towards friendly units.

Q: What happens if Boabdil should capture a fellow Moor leader?

A: The Moorish Leader is eliminated from play.

SIEGE/CANNONS

Q: Does a unit(s) defending a castle lose their first strike roll if the walls are breached?

A: No.  They only lose the double roll ability.

Q: A siege gun question. I have a Leader with a siege gun attacking a castle (with or without units). I succeed breaching the walls with my siege gun eliminating the enemy's double roll ability. The ensuing attack fails and I end the battle. On my next season, I activate my leader and siege gun again. Is the wall still breached?

A: Yes

Q: If I decide to move my leader and gun away (on this next turn) does the castle remained breached for the remainder of the game? 

A: No, at the end of the campaign season (not a single season) it is repaired, or when all besieging units leave the area, whichever comes first. 


REINFORCEMENTS

Q: Under reinforcements the rules state "each player rolls once for each column on his or her Reinforcement Chart...". Should this not be "roll once for each row"? 

A: Yes

Q: Under the same issue of reinforcements, it states, "Once a reinforcement of a particular Ottoman type has been received, no further rolls are made for that type (they only arrive once, so roll high)”. On the Reinforcement chart, it shows you roll for Ottoman reinforcements each year starting in 1486. Does this mean that if I roll for Ottoman ships in 1486 and receive 1 ship, that I get no more Ottoman ships for the rest of the game (and the same issue for Ottoman infantry)? This just doesn't seem right. Which is correct, the rules or the chart? 

A: Basically, it is a long shot that Granada would get anything.  So, once you receive a given Ottoman unit type as reinforcement at year’s end, you don’t roll for it again.

CLARIFICATION

One, Reserve Movement is movement. Two, you can reinforce a position where an enemy is attacking friendly forces or a castle. Three, you cannot attack an enemy castle. Four, you can never overrun a castle. Five, if during an enemy activation die roll, you get activated, you may attack an enemy area (units and /or siege). That was my intent. Plus, Reserve Movement is just that, movement. The only time combat occurs is when the player uses Reserve Movement to reinforce the defenders of a battle that will be taking in the next phase. 

